
 

 

 
 

 

DEVON AND CORNWALL POLICE AND CRIME PANEL – 

EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING  
 

Friday 22 November 2024 

10.30 am 

Council Chamber, Council House 
 

Members: 

Councillor Haydon Chair 

Councillor Worth Vice Chair 

Councillors Alvey, Chopak, Croad, Czapiewski, Ewings, Goodman-Bradbury, Hackett, Leaver, 

Loudoun, Penberthy, Rodgers, Thomas, Tilbey, Toms, Tyerman, Wright, B Jones (Independent 

Member for Devon) and, C Jones (Independent Member for Cornwall).  
 

Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of business overleaf. 
 

This meeting will be webcast and available on-line after the meeting.  By entering the Council 

Chamber, councillors are consenting to being filmed during the meeting and to the use of the 

recording for the webcast. 
 

The Council is a data controller under the Data Protection Act.  Data collected during this 

webcast will be retained in accordance with authority’s published policy. 

 

You can watch any of our webcast meetings on YouTube. For further information on 

webcasting, attending Council meetings and how to engage in the democratic process please 

follow this link - Get Involved 
 
 

Tracey Lee 

Chief Executive 

Devon and Cornwall Police and 

Crime Panel 

 

c/o Plymouth City Council 

Democratic Support 

Floor 3, Ballard House 

West Hoe Road 

Plymouth  PL1 3BJ 

 

Please ask for Ross Jago  

T 01752 668000 

E democratic.support@plymouth.gov.uk 

www.plymouth.gov.uk/democracy 

Published:  14/11/2024 

https://www.youtube.com/playlist?list=PLW0qNdfVlat35d9TRrIZF8fstPQ3ucVRl
https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/get-involved
http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/


 

 

 

Devon and Cornwall Police and Crime Panel 
 

 

1. Apologies    

  

 To receive apologies for non-attendance submitted by Members. 

  

2. Declarations of Interest    

  

 Members will be asked to make any declaration of interest in respect of items on this 

agenda. 

  

3. The Commissioner's actions in response to a decision by the 

panel at its 19 July 2024 meeting:   

(Pages 1 - 6) 

 

 



 

   

OFFICIAL 

MOTION ON NOTICE  

 

Date of Council Meeting:  22 November 2024 

Title of Motion: The Commissioner’s actions in response to a decision by the panel at its 19 

July 2024 meeting.  

 

Motion Narrative and Action Required: 

 

In a letter dated 1 July 2024 the Panel was advised by the Commissioner of her proposed 

appointment (of Mark Kingscote) to the post of ‘Deputy Police and Crime Commissioner’.  

 

The Panel was further advised by the Commissioner that – 

 

“Under paragraph 10 of Schedule 1, the Police and Crime Panel must review my proposed 

appointment and make a report back to me as the Commissioner on the proposed appointment. This 
report must include a recommendation as to whether the candidate should be appointed, within a 

period of three weeks beginning with the day on which the Panel receives notification from the 

Commissioner of the proposed appointment”. 

 

In July 2017, at the request of the Commissioner, this proposed appointee, Mark Kingscote, had 

previously been considered by the Panel for the role of Deputy Commissioner. On 7 July 2017 

the Panel determined – 

 

“The Panel agreed that the candidate does not meet the minimum requirements of the post.   In 

accordance with Schedule 1, Para 10 (4) of the Police and Social Responsibility Act the Panel 

recommends that the candidate should not be appointed”.  

 

In a response letter to the Panel the Commissioner accepted the Panel’s recommendation.   

 

Within the agenda for the Panel’s 19 July 2024 meeting, it was invited by the Commissioner to 

once again endorse “the appointment of Mr Mark Kingscote as the Deputy Police and Crime 

Commissioner for Devon, Cornwall and the Isles of Scilly” and for this appointment to be “for a one-

year appointment with the option to extend to the end of the current electoral term”. 

 

The Panel gave lengthy and detailed consideration to this proposed appointment, which has been 

recorded as –  

 

“…. After a lengthy discussion where Panel members considered Mr Kingscote’s suitability against the 

criteria you provided, the Panel formed the view that the candidate did not have sufficient experience 

and that he would be unable to work on behalf of all residents of Devon, Cornwall and the Isles of 

Scilly. 

 

The Panel agreed that the candidate does not meet the minimum requirements of the post. In 

accordance with Schedule 1, Para 10 (4) of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act the Panel 

recommends that the candidate should not be appointed. 
 

  

 

Page 1 Agenda Item 3



 

 

OFFICIAL 

A separate letter outlining the Panel’s concerns will be provided to the Office of the Police and Crime 

Commissioner on the next working day after this meeting”. 

 

On the next working day, 22 July 2024, the Commissioner was sent written confirmation of the 

Panel’s decision. This written confirmation fulfilled its obligations, as drawn to its attention by the 
Commissioner that “Under paragraph 10 of Schedule 1, the Police and Crime Panel” it “must review 

my proposed appointment and make a report back to me as the Commissioner on the proposed 

appointment”. 

 

Immediately after the Panel meeting had concluded the Commissioner spoke directly to the BBC 

journalist who had been covering the Panel meeting. In the BBC’s report of 19 July which 

covered matters considered at the meeting it states – 

 

“…In a separate development, Ms Hernandez said she was making Mark Kingscote a Deputy 

Commissioner. Mr Kingscote is a retired NHS mental health support worker who used to be a 

Conservative councillor in the same ward as Ms Hernandez in Torbay. The panel voted to recommend 

the PCC did not appoint her chosen candidate as he did not meet the minimum requirements for the 

role, but Ms Hernandez said she would not accept the recommendation. The panel voted to 

recommend the PCC did not appoint her chosen candidate as he did not meet the minimum 

requirements for the role, but Ms Hernandez said she would not accept the recommendation. 

Defending her decision, Ms Hernandez said she felt it was the right move to bring in Mr Kingscote…”. 

 

This BBC report is here – Ex-Met chief advising Devon and Cornwall Police - BBC News. 

 

The Commissioner’s decision to appoint Mark Kingscote as Deputy Commissioner as explained 

to the BBC reporter was confirmed in a press release issued by her press office about 90 minutes 

after the conclusion of the Panel meeting. The press release is here – Former mental health 

worker recruited to assist Commissioner in tackling antisocial behaviour · Devon & Cornwall 

Police & Crime Commissioner (devonandcornwall-pcc.gov.uk). 

 

The Commissioner did not advise the Panel that she was not accepting the Panel’s 

recommendation for 17 working days after its report was sent to her. Schedule 1, Para 12 (2) of 

the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act states that – 

“The police and crime commissioner must notify the panel of the decision whether to accept or reject the 

recommendation”. 
 

This Panel notes with the utmost concern the Commissioner’s actions which she took after its 

decision on 19 July in which it recommended “that the candidate (for Deputy Commissioner) should 

not be appointed”. These were that the Commissioner – 

(i) immediately informed the BBC that she would not accept the Panel’s recommendation 

and was appointing Mark Kingscote as the Deputy Commissioner. 

(ii) issued a press release within hours of the Panel’s decision which stated, “Mark 

Kingscote will become Devon and Cornwall’s Deputy Police and Crime Commissioner”. 

(iii) failed to wait to receive the Panel’s formal decision, which it is required to send to the 

Commissioner under Schedule 1, Para 12 (2) of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility 

Act, before advising the BBC and issuing a press release announcing her appointment 

of Mark Kingscote as the Deputy Commissioner.  

(iv) took 17 working days, from receiving formal confirmation of the Panel meeting’s 

decision of 19 July, to advise it of her intention to appoint Mark Kingscote as the 

Deputy Commissioner. This was discourteous to the Panel and its important scrutiny 

role, particularly given that the Commissioner had by then already briefed the press of 

her decision. 

(v) by her actions has brought the office of the Commissioner into disrepute by showing 

total disrespect for this Panel and the decision it made on 19 July. 

Page 2

https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/articles/cp9v74xp3j3o
https://www.devonandcornwall-pcc.gov.uk/news-and-blog/multimedia-hub/former-mental-health-worker-recruited-to-assist-commissioner-in-tackling-antisocial-behaviour/
https://www.devonandcornwall-pcc.gov.uk/news-and-blog/multimedia-hub/former-mental-health-worker-recruited-to-assist-commissioner-in-tackling-antisocial-behaviour/
https://www.devonandcornwall-pcc.gov.uk/news-and-blog/multimedia-hub/former-mental-health-worker-recruited-to-assist-commissioner-in-tackling-antisocial-behaviour/


 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

Having considered the commissioner's actions and their context the Panel calls upon the 

Commissioner to formally apologise to the Panel for her actions as referenced in (i) to (v) above. 

 

Proposer:  Councillor John Loudoun  

Seconder: Councillors Mandy Ewings, Laura Wright, Philip Hackett, and Dan Thomas 
 

 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

OFFICIAL 

Content of press release issued on 19 July 2024 by the Commissioner 
 

 

Former mental health worker recruited to assist Commissioner in tackling 

antisocial behaviour 

A former mental health worker has been recruited to help Devon and Cornwall’s Police and 

Crime Commissioner tackle residents’ top priority – antisocial behaviour. 

 

Mark Kingscote has today (Friday, July 19) been confirmed as Devon and Cornwall’s Deputy 

Police and Crime Commissioner on a part-time 12-month contract. 

 

The former mental health worker will lend his expertise to the Commissioner’s projects 

relating to street attached homelessness and drug misuse. 

 

With additional Home Office funding for hotspot policing in 16 locations, the 

Commissioner’s Street Focus project involves bringing multiple partners together to find 

solutions to some of the complex challenges seen in towns and cities across the force area. 

Since launching in Torquay it has boosted visible policing, deep cleaned public spaces and 

resulted in dozens of arrests. 

 

Mr Kingscote, an experienced politician with extensive experience in local government, has 

had a successful career with the NHS and in the community and voluntary sector. He has 

been a champion of young people through the Prince’s Trust. 

 
Commissioner Alison Hernandez said: “Mark has a strong understanding of governance and 

has worked with senior leaders in a variety of capacities. He possesses a unique blend of 

skills that I value, and I believe will benefit the people of Devon, Cornwall and the Isles of 

Scilly. I regard the role as being vital to improve performance in policing, as well as reducing 

crime and ensuring residents feel safe in their communities. 

 

“I have every confidence that Mark is the right person for this role. He is a strong individual 

who will represent me well, and is committed to building safe, resilient and connected 

communities where everyone has a part to play.” 

 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 The Commissioner's actions in response to a decision by the panel at its 19 July 2024 meeting
	19.7.24Content of press release issued on 19 July 2024 by the Commissioner (003)


